
 

 

November 28, 2023 
 
VIA E-MAIL 

Mayor and City Council 
City of Columbia  
701 E. Broadway 
Columbia, MO 65201 
 

Re:   Bill B286-23/Planning and Zoning Case #260-2023  
Columbia South Real Estate, LLC 
Request to Remand to Planning & Zoning 

 
Dear Mayor and Councilmembers –  
 
 This firm represents Columbia South Real Estate, LLC (the “Applicant”) with respect to 
Planning and Zoning Case No. 260-2023/Council Bill B286-23.  I am writing to correct some 
information and clarify a few issues that were discussed at the October 19, 2023 Planning & 
Zoning Commission meeting.  After you have reviewed this information, if you have additional 
questions, we would be happy to discuss those questions.  Further, if you believe it would be 
appropriate to remand this matter back to the Planning & Zoning Commission for further 
consideration, the Applicant would be agreeable to that course of action.   
 
 In the way of background, Case #260 – 2023 is a request for a zoning amendment for a 
residential property located in the Village of Cherry Hill.  The property is in a planned zoning 
district.  The proposed zoning amendment is straightforward – it would increase the number of 
residential units and the gross floor area of the proposed building.  The staff report ultimately 
recommended approval at the Planning & Zoning Commission.  However, the written staff report 
also characterized the request as a request to “convert the use of the building from retail/residential 
to all residential and [to] increase the number of approved multi-family residential units from 4 to 
24.”  As such, this created the perception that the zoning request was proposing to convert a mixed-
use building to a purely residential building and to add 20 residential units.  This is simply 
incorrect.   
 

Specifically, the zoning plan at issue was amended in 2014.  A copy of the 2014 amendment 
is enclosed as Exhibit 1.  We believe staff inadvertently overlooked the 2014 amendment in 
preparing its report.  We certainly believe the oversight was unintentional, but even so, the failure 
to include the 2014 amendment in the staff report had a significant impact on the October 19, 2023 
hearing and in the Planning and Zoning Commission’s recommendation. Most importantly, the 
2014 amendment eliminated the retail component of the proposed building such that the only 
permitted use in the building became residential in 2014.  In other words, the current request does 
not represent a change in use at all – for the last ten years, the existing zoning contemplated that 
the proposed building would be strictly residential.  This perceived change in use was probably 
the largest single topic of discussion and point of contention at the October 19, 2023 Planning and 
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Zoning Commission hearing.  Many Commissioners and speakers from the public expressed 
concern with the perceived change in use.  But, again, there is no change in use here.  The existing 
zoning only allows residential uses and the current request proposes only residential uses.   

 
  Similarly, the 2014 zoning amendment increased the density from 4 units to 10 residential 

units and increased the permitted floor area from 10,000 square feet to 12,500 square feet.  
However, the staff report incorrectly suggested that the proposed request represented an addition 
of 20 dwelling units and 10,500 square feet of floor area when in reality the proposal only 
represents an increase of 14 dwelling units and 8,000 square feet of floor area.1  Although the 
density did not receive as much discussion as the change in use issue, this nevertheless fed into the 
perception that the proposed request represented a significant departure from the current zoning. 

 
To illustrate the impact this omission had on the Applicant’s request, consider how staff 

summarized the report at City Council versus how staff summarized the report at Planning & 
Zoning2:    

 
Planning and Zoning memo:  
 

 
 
City Council memo:  
 

 
 
As you can see, the request was presented to P&Z as a proposal to eliminate the retail use from the 
building and convert the uses to residential only. The purported change-in-use is mentioned twice 
in the introductory paragraph of the staff report.  Again, the purported change-in-use dominated 
the Planning and Zoning hearing.  But it is not mentioned at all in the staff memo presented as part 
of the City Council packet.   
 
 Please note that this is not intended to be critical of City staff in any way, shape or form.   
We’re all human and we understand that mistakes happen.  But here, the mistake impacted the 
outcome of the P&Z hearing and influenced P&Z’s recommendation.  Therefore, as a matter of 

 
1 Of note, approximately 4,000 square feet of the proposed building will consist entirely of breezeways 
and hallways which are not part of any particular dwelling unit.  As such, the habitable space is an 
increase from the 2014 amendment of only 6,000 square feet.  
2 A copy of the staff report to P&Z is attached as Exhibit 2. 
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fairness, it seems appropriate to remand this back to P&Z for reconsideration in light of the 2014 
amendment. 
 

Finally, there was much discussion regarding the restrictive covenants in the Village of 
Cherry Hill.  At the outset, it is worth noting that restrictive covenants are a private contractual 
matter between the property owners and their respective homeowners’ association and are 
completely independent from City zoning.  In any event, the restrictive covenants were discussed 
at length at the P&Z hearing and the discussion ranged from architectural questions to the use of 
the association pool.  So I wanted to clarify some misconceptions regarding the covenants.  First, 
the Village of Cherry Hill has two separate and independent homeowners’ association and each 
association has its own rules and regulations.  One association is known as the “Town Center” and 
one association is known as the “Neighborhood.”  Each association is separate from the other.  The 
only source of overlap is a set of master restrictions that apply in both areas.  Otherwise, the Town 
Center has its own rules and architectural review process and the Neighborhood has its own rules 
and architectural review process.  The property at issue is located in the Town Center portion of 
Cherry Hill.  Prior to submitting the proposed request, the Applicant contacted property owners 
and board members within the Town Center area and received positive feedback on the proposed 
request.  As such, the Applicant had been in direct contact with the applicable homeowners’ 
association before submitting the proposed zoning amendment.  Following the Planning & Zoning 
hearing, the Applicant also reached out to the Neighborhood portion of Cherry Hill to solicit their 
input.  It is my understanding that the Applicant anticipates having formal approval of the proposal 
from the Town Center association and additional informal feedback from the Neighborhood 
association in the near future.  Thus, remanding this back to Planning & Zoning would allow the 
Applicant to have those responses in hand before proceeding for a final vote on this matter.       

 
As always, thank you in advance for your time and attention to this request.  If we can 

provide any other information or answer any questions, please just let me know.  
 

       Sincerely,  

 

 

      R. Caleb Colbert 

 
 



.~~.~~

.~~ City of Columbia Community Development Department
701 East Broadway, PO Box6015, Columbia, MO 65205-6015

August 5, 2014

Spencer Haskarnp
A Civil Group
spencer@acivilgroup.com
573-817-1677

Dear Mr. Haskamp:

By means of this letter I am approving your request for a minor amendment to the C-P
development plan known as 'The Village of Cherry Hill C-P Plan". Approved changes are limited
to Lot 3B, and are itemized below:

• Added a walk-out "terrace" floor with four residential units
• Replaced the first floor retail use with four residential units
• Reduced the number of units on the second floor from four to two
• Increased the GFAfrom 10,000 sq. ft. to 12,500 sq. ft.

Permits may now be issued by applicable City departments, provided that such improvements
are consistent with the revised plan.

If you have any questions, please feel free to call me at (573) 874-7239.

Tim Teddy
Director, Community Development
ttteddy@gocolumbiamo.com

TTT/sjm

Building & Site Development

(573) 874-7474
Fax (573) 874-7283

Neighborhood Services
(573) 817-5050
Fax (573) 442-0022

Planning & Zoning
(573) 874-7239
Fax (573) 874-7546

TTY 1-800-676-3777 MO Relay www.gocolumhialllo.com/community development 1
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